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s AMERICAN AGRICULTURAL CHEMICAL COMPANY

Statement of Significance

The complex of buildings that today comprises the operations
of the American Agricultural Chemical Company in Canton is signi-
ficant because it houses one of Baltimore's oldest industries.

The fertilizer industry has played an important role in Baltimore's
industrial development. Baltimore has not only been the world
center of the fertilizer industry, first natural and then artifi-
cial since the beginnings of the industry, but has the distinc-
tion of being the birthplace of the first artificial fertilizer.
The buildings still remaining on the AAGRICO site were all

designed with the peculiar characteristics of the fertilizer

industry in mind.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The AAGRICO complex is a combination of manufacturing and
storage structures, some of which date back to the late 19th
century. The oldest are the large barn-like buildings used
to store bulk raw materials and products. Because fertilizer
is a water-soluable substance it has always been stored under
cover. There are several such structures on the AAGRICO site,
the earliest having been constructed in the 1880s when that
part of the complex belonged to the Canton Chemical Company.
This building has its axis perpendicular to Clinton Street.
It is a two-story post and beam timber frame covered with
wooden siding and asphalt "brick-tex" (added recently) which
covers the bottom of the large piles stored inside.

Perpendicular to this building are two later buildings
which serve a similar function but with far different morpho-
logy. These structures are of heavy timbers in a gambreled
A-framéconfiguration peculiar to the fertilizer industry.

The manufacturing facilities for the production of super-
phosphate fertilizers were housed in the brick structures along
Clinton Street and the adjacent timber- frame building. Phos-
phate mined in Florida and overseas arrived by ship and were
stored in the wooden structure. When needed they were moved by
conveyor to a mixing tank where they were combined with suf-
phuric acid to produce a substance with an abundance of available
phosphorus. The brick building with adjacent smokestack housed
the boilers and generators which provided power for the operation.
A small machine shop for repairs was also contained in this
building.

Across Clinton Street, a large acid plant with massive
lead tanks produced the necessary sulphuric acid. This structure
is now gone. An interesting small brick storage building with
the remnants of the conveyor system remains, as does a more
modern office building.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The buildings in the Aagrico complex are significant in that they

house one of Baltimore oldest businesses.
played an important role in Baltimore's industrial development.

The fertilizer industry has

Balti-

more has not only been the world center of the fertilizer industry,
first natural and then artificial since the beginnings of the industry,
but has the distinction of being the birthplace of the first artificial

fertilizer.

The buildings still remaining on the AAGRICO site (oldest,

1880s), were all designed with the peculiar characteristics of the
fertilizer industry in mind.

Historx

f—

The structure now part of the headquarters of the Baltimore ferti-
lizer complex, known as Aagrico, was originally built to house the

Chemical Company of Canton.

A group of Baltimore businessmen, Charles

J. Baker, William G. Harrison, William Davidson and others established
It was soon''one of the princi-

the Chemical Company of Canton in 1873;

ple works of Canton."

lizers."

Chemicals'", in 1898.

The company w

Known as the Chemical Paint and Varnish Company
the business was a general manufacturer of chemicals.
the firm began to produce artificial fertilizers and by 1885 it was
noted that the company's operations had '"been confined (for a number of
years) to preparation and distribution of high grade commercial ferti-

In the 1880's

as also cited as an "importer of Agricultural

The site of the Chemical Company of Canton is a large section of
property on Lazaretto Point "covering nearly 4-acres, situated directly
on the waterfront with large wharf accomodations, extending thence in
depth across Clinton Street to First Street and in width from 9th to

10th Avenue.

The buildings are large and commodious and fully equipped

with the latest improved machinery and with two acid chambers for the

manufacture of sulphuric acid used in the business."

(1895 description)

In 1898 the Chemical Company of Canton became part of a "fertilizer

trust," named the American Agricultural Company.
~~eight Baltimore plants,
that time:

The trust acquired

including some of the largest in the city at

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Lazaretto Guano Company, Patapsco Guano Company, Maryland
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ES1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Ann E. Steele, Linda Daur, Rosalie

ORGANIZATION DATE
Baltimore Museum of Industry October, 1982
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
1415 Key Highway 301-727-4808
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Baltimore Maryland 21230

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

Ps- 1108



Page 2

#B-986
American Agricultural Chemical Company

~~MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
SIGNIFICANCE

History (cont.)

Fertilizing and Manufacturing Company; Susquehanna Fertilizer Company;
Chemical Company of Canton, all clustered together in Canton, Dietrick
Fertilizer Works and Zell Guano Company in Locust Point and Slingluff and
Company at the foot of Leadenhall Street, (formerly Davidson, Kettlewell
and Company). The largest of the works, Lazaretto Guano Company (on near-
ly 9-acres of land) was made part of the local headquarters with the
Chemical Company of Canton, and the plants not adjacent were eventually
phased out.

In the early 1900's many advances were made in the fertilizer industry.
In 1907 the American Agricultural Comapny was one of the first local plants
to use electricity as motive power. This local plant ranked as one of the
city's largest manufacturer of complete fertilizers. The demands of World
War I stimulated the fertilizer industry and contined until the depression
of the 30's. There was partial recovery in the late 1940's.

In the 1960's Aagrico was taken over by the Continental 0il Company as
part of a general movement: a "major invasion of the fetilizer field by the
petroleum industry'", a move which has eliminated many of the plants who

~~found it difficult to compete.
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